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OMB Control No.: 2127-0004

Part 573 Safety Recall Report 16V-859

Manufacturer Name : Ride The Ducks International LLC
Submission Date : NOV 22,2016
NHTSA Recall No.: 16V-859
Manufacturer Recall No.: NR

Manufacturer Information : Population :
Manufacturer Name : Ride The Ducks International LLC Number of potentially involved : 57
Address: 2320 W Highway 76 Estimated percentage with defect: 100 %

PO BOX 1837 BRANSON MO 65616
Company phone : 417 266 7600

Vehicle Information :

Vehicle 1: 1996-2005 RTDI “Stretch” Amphibious Passenger Vehicles
Vehicle Type :
Body Style :
Power Train: NR
Descriptive Information : Amphibious Passenger Vehicle

Production Dates : JAN 01, 1996 - DEC 31, 2005
VIN Range 1:Begin: NR End: NR [ ] Not sequential

Description of Defect :

Description of the Defect : The axle housing can fracture at the connection point between the knuckle ball
and the housing due to excessive fatigue.
FMVSS1: NR
FMVSS2: NR
Description of the Safety Risk : If the axle housing fractures, the driver may lose control of the vehicle and
increase the risk of a crash.
Description of the Cause : The axle housing can fracture due to excessive fatigue.

Identification of Any Warning NR
that can Occur :

The information contained in this report was submitted pursuant to 49 CFR 8573




Part 573 Safety Recall Report 16V-859 Page2

Supplier Identification :

Component Manufacturer

Name: NR

Address: NR

NR

Country: NR
Chronology :

See attached document

Description of Remedy :

Description of Remedy Program : The remedy program applied was set forth in the Service Bulletin issued
on October 1, 2013. The remedy involved strengthening the connection
where the knuckle housing ball connects to the axle housing.

How Remedy Component Differs NR
from Recalled Component :

Identify How/When Recall Condition RTDI is not currently building or having built new amphibious passenger
was Corrected in Production : vehicles.

Recall Schedule :

Description of Recall Schedule : RTDI will send formal customer notification letters to its company-

owned operators and licensors as set forth in the Consent Order with
NHTSA. To the extent that Ride the Ducks Seattle requests parts to
conduct the repair, they are available. Ride the Ducks International will
offer reimbursement to any licensor that has already conducted the
repairs.

Planned Dealer Notification Date: NR - NR

Planned Owner Notification Date: NR - NR

*NR - Not Reported

The information contained in this report was submitted pursuant to 49 CFR 8573
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OMB Control No.: 2127-0004

Part 573 Safety Recall Report 16V-859

Manufacturer Name : Ride The Ducks International LLC
Submission Date : MAY 04, 2017
NHTSA Recall No.: 16V-859
Manufacturer Recall No.: NR

Manufacturer Information : Population :
Manufacturer Name : Ride The Ducks International LLC Number of potentially involved : 57
Address: 2320 W Highway 76 Estimated percentage with defect: 100 %

PO BOX 1837 BRANSON MO 65616
Company phone : 417 266 7600

Vehicle Information :

Vehicle 1: 1996-2005 RTDI “Stretch” Amphibious Passenger Vehicles
Vehicle Type :
Body Style :
Power Train: NR
Descriptive Information : Amphibious Passenger Vehicle

Production Dates : JAN 01, 1996 - DEC 31, 2005
VIN Range 1:Begin: NR End: NR [ ] Not sequential

Description of Defect :

Description of the Defect : The axle housing can fracture at the connection point between the knuckle ball
and the housing due to excessive fatigue.
FMVSS1: NR
FMVSS2: NR
Description of the Safety Risk : If the axle housing fractures, the driver may lose control of the vehicle and
increase the risk of a crash.
Description of the Cause : The axle housing can fracture due to excessive fatigue.

Identification of Any Warning NR
that can Occur :

The information contained in this report was submitted pursuant to 49 CFR 8573
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Supplier Identification :

Component Manufacturer

Name: NR

Address: NR

NR

Country: NR
Chronology :

See attached document amending chronology

Description of Remedy :

Description of Remedy Program : RTDI will replace each of the front axles with one that has a coupler
welded to the axle. Prior to the installation of the coupler, the axles will
undergo magna particle testing. The axles will also be inspected on an
annual basis.

How Remedy Component Differs NR
from Recalled Component :

Identify How/When Recall Condition RTDI is not currently building or having built new amphibious passenger
was Corrected in Production : vehicles.

Recall Schedule :

Description of Recall Schedule : RTDI will send formal customer notification letters to its company-
owned operators and licensors as set forth in the Consent Order with
NHTSA. Ride the Ducks International will offer reimbursement to any
licensor that has already conducted the repairs.
Planned Dealer Notification Date: NR - NR

Planned Owner Notification Date: NR - NR

*NR - Not Reported

The information contained in this report was submitted pursuant to 49 CFR 8573
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OMB Control No.: 2127-0004

Part 573 Safety Recall Report

17V-501

Manufacturer Name :

Submission Date :
NHTSA Recall No. :
Manufacturer Recall No. :

Ride The Ducks International LLC
AUG 11, 2017

17v-501

NR

Manufacturer Information :

Manufacturer Name : Ride

Population :

The Ducks International LLC

Number of potentially involved: 57

Address: 2320 W Highway 76 Estimated percentage with defect: 100 %
PO BOX 1837 BRANSON MO 65616
Company phone : 417 266 7600
Vehicle Information :
Vehicle 1: 1996-2005 RTDI Stretch Amphibious Passenger Vehicles
Vehicle Type : BUSES, MEDIUM & HEAVY VEHICLES
Body Style : OTHER

Power Train ;
Descriptive Information :
Production Dates :

VIN Range 1:Begin:

NR
Amphibious Passenger Vehicle

JAN 01, 1996 -DEC 31, 2005

NR End: NR [ ] Not sequential

Description of Defect :

Description of the Defect :

FMVSS1:
FMVSS 2 :

Description of the Safety Risk :

Description of the Cause :

Identification of Any Warning
that can Occur :

The axle housing can fracture at the connection point between the knuckle ball
and the housing due to excessive fatigue.

NR

NR

The axle housing can fracture at the connection point between the knuckle
ball and the housing due to excessive fatigue.

The axle housing can fracture due to excessive fatigue.

NR

Supplier Identification :

Component Manufacturer
NR
NR

Name :
Address :

The information contained in this report was submitted pursuant to 49 CFR 8573
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NR
Country: NR

Chronology :
Chronology Uploaded as Miscellaneous Document

Description of Remedy :

Description of Remedy Program : RTDI will replace each of the front axles with one that has a coupler
welded to the axle. Prior to the installation of the coupler, the axles will
undergo magna particle testing. The axles will also be inspected on an
annual basis.

How Remedy Component Differs Vehicles will be provided new axles with a coupler welded to the axle.
from Recalled Component :

Identify How/When Recall Condition RTDI is not currently building or having built new amphibious passenger
was Corrected in Production : vehicles.

Recall Schedule :

Description of Recall Schedule : RTDI previously notified owners under recall 16V-859. RTDI will reissue
owner notification letters once NHTSA issues a hew recall number and
approves the draft letter.

Planned Dealer Notification Date: NR - NR

Planned Owner Notification Date: NR - NR

*NR - Not Reported

The information contained in this report was submitted pursuant to 49 CFR 8573
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Service Date July 25, 2017

BEFORE THE WASHINGTON
UTILITIES AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

WASHINGTON UTILITIES AND DOCKET TE-151906
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION,

. ORDER 09
Complainant,

V.

ORDER DENYING PETITION TO LIFT
SUSPENSION ON USE OF “STRETCH
DUCKS”

RIDE THE DUCKS OF SEATTLE,
L.L.C. d/b/a SEATTLE DUCK TOURS,

Respondent.

BACKGROUND

On September 24, 2015, an incident occurred on the Aurora Bridge in Seattle involving a
Ride the Ducks of Seattle, LLC d/b/a Seattle Duck Tours (Ride the Ducks or Company)
vehicle that resulted in the tragic deaths of five people and serious injuries to many
others. On September 28, 2015, the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission
(Commission) conducted emergency adjudicative proceedings pursuant to RCW
34.05.479 and entered Order 01, Notice of Emergency Adjudication and Order
Suspending Certificate (Order 01). Order 01 suspended Certificate No. ES-00146 to
operate and provide excursion services (Certificate) held by Ride the Ducks pending the
results of a Commission staff (Staff) investigation and inspection of Ride the Ducks’
entire fleet of vehicles, drivers, and operations.

On December 22, 2015, the Commission entered Order 05, which among other things,
lifted the suspension of Certificate No. ES-00146 to operate and provide excursion
services held by Ride the Ducks using its “Truck Duck” vehicles, but continued the
suspension on its “Stretch Duck” vehicles “unless and until the Company demonstrates to
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the Commission’s satisfaction that those vehicles do not pose an immediate danger to
99]

public safety.
On July 12, 2017, Ride the Ducks filed with the Commission a petition requesting to
reinstate the Company’s authority to provide excursion services using its Stretch Duck
vehicles (Petition). The Petition claims that the manufacturer of the Stretch Ducks, Ride
the Ducks International (RTDI), issued a recall for the front axle safety defect, as
required by the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration, and will arrange to
replace each of the front axles with one that has a coupler welded to the axle. The Petition
further claims that RTDI notified Ride the Ducks that it will receive new axles compliant
with the recall on or around July 12, 2017, that Ride the Ducks intends to install and
maintain the axles to the requirements set by the safety recall, and that this demonstrates
that the vehicles do not pose an immediate danger to public safety.

On July 21, 2017, Staff submitted its response to the Petition (Staff Response). Staff
opposes the request to lift the suspension on the use of Stretch Duck vehicles as
premature. Staff states that it would support the Company’s requested relief if Ride the
Ducks were to:

e Provide verification through a qualified third party, to the satisfaction of
the Commission, that the new axle installation in each Stretch Duck
vehicle meets or exceeds the applicable federal motor vehicle safety
standards.

e Perform an annual inspection in accordance with 49 CFR 396.17 and
correct any defects discovered during the inspections.?

Staff also “proposes to conduct a jurisdictionally mandated Level VII commercial vehicle

inspection on each Stretch Duck vehicle the Company proposes to operate.”

On July 21, 2017, the Public Counsel Unit of the Washington Attorney General’s Office
(Public Counsel) submitted its response to the Petition (Public Counsel Response). Public

' Order 05 9 24.
2 Staff Response at 2.
31d.
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Counsel states that it did not receive a copy of the Petition,* but based on the summary in
the Commission’s Notice of Opportunity to Respond, Public Counsel also opposes the
Petition. According to Public Counsel, “The Company’s intentions, while the first step in
reinstating their certificate to operate, does not meet the Commission’s requirement that
the Company demonstrate that the vehicles pose no danger to public safety.”> Public
Counsel concurs with all the recommendations Staff made in its response.

DISCUSSION AND DECISION

The Commission acknowledges the efforts Ride the Ducks has made to improve the
safety of its Stretch Duck vehicles. We nevertheless agree with Staff and Public Counsel
that those steps are not sufficient to demonstrate to the Commission’s satisfaction that
those vehicles do not pose an immediate danger to public safety. Promises of actions to
be taken in the future do not ensure that the vehicles currently are safe to operate.
Accordingly, we deny the Petition.

Our denial, however, is without prejudice to the Company to submit a subsequent request
to lift the suspension if and when the Stretch Ducks comply with all applicable safety
standards. To that end, we adopt Staff’s recommendations and require any future petition,
at a minimum, (1) to demonstrate that the Company has satisfied the requirements Staff
proposes, and (2) to be submitted to the Commission and served in compliance with
WAC 480-07-360 and Order 07, Prehearing Conference Order.

ORDER
THE COMMISSION ORDERS:

(1) The Petition of Ride the Ducks of Seattle, LLC d/b/a Seattle Duck Tours to lift the
suspension on its authority to provide excursion services using its Stretch Duck
vehicles is DENIED without prejudice.

(2)  Any future petition Ride the Ducks of Seattle, LLC d/b/a Seattle Duck Tours files
to lift the suspension on its authority to provide excursion services using its

4 Public Counsel Response q 1, n.1. We note that only Public Counsel submitted a certificate of service
with its pleading as required in WAC 480-07-360, and no party copied the presiding administrative law
judge on its electronic service as required in Order 07, Prehearing Conference Order, in this docket.

S1d. 9 3.
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Stretch Duck vehicles, at a minimum, must demonstrate that the Company has
satisfied the requirements in paragraph 4 above and must be filed and served in
compliance with all applicable procedural requirements.

DATED at Olympia, Washington and effective July 25, 2017.

WASHINGTON UTILITIES AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

DAVID W. DANNER, Chairman

ANN E. RENDAHL, Commissioner

JAY M. BALASBAS, Commissioner
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Recreation Engineering, Inc.

300 N. Lynx Creek Rd., Prescott, AZ 86303
Tel (928) 778-6211  Fax (928) 778-6212

RECREATION SAFETY AND ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS

BRIAN D. KING, P.E. / Professional Mechanical Engineer, IL, FL, NV; CMT II, COT Il, NAARSO IlI, QSI, CRI
JEFFERY W. ABENDSHIEN / ASNT NDT Level lll, NAARSO I, QSI, CMT I, COT II, PRI, CAOT
BARTHOLOMEW J. MUELLER / NDT Level Il, ETCP Certified Rigger, NAARSO II, CMT, CAOT

KEVIN D. GARRISON / CWI, NDT Level Il, NAARSO IlI, QSI, CMT I, CAOT

MARY JANE BREWER / CPO, AFO, NAARSO Level Il, COT, CAOT

JONATHAN D. HINDS / Mechanical Engineer

JAN A. KING / AB, Director of Administrative Services

Web Site: www.RecreationEngineering.com

Mechanical Analysis and Design

Maintenance and Safety Audits

Mechanical Testing and Dynamic Analysis
Maintenance and Safety Program Development
Clark County QA and CA QSI Inspections
Non-Destructive Testing

Writer’s e-mail:
Abendshien@RecreationEngineering.com

August 3, 2017

Ryan Johnson

Director of Operations
Ryan@ridetheducksofseattle.com
Cell: (206)-571-3045

Re: REI Third Party Inspection of Duck #4 Axle Housing and Related Components

Mr. Johnson:

Recreation Engineering, Inc., has inspected the installation of the front axle housing and related
components (steering, suspension and brakes) on Duck #4. The inspection was performed by Jeffery W.
Abendshien.

The scope of service was as follows:

Safety inspection to Ride the Duck International specifications and applicable Federal Motor Vehicle Safety
Standards in Title 49, Part 570 "Vehicle In Use Inspection Standards" as mentioned below.

Based upon the aforementioned, the Duck #4 front axle housing and related components were inspected,
tested, evaluated, and found to be in substantial compliance with the manufacturer specifications and
applicable Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards, specifically Title 49, Part 570, Sub-Part B, Sections
570.59 (Service Brake System), 570.60 (Steering System), 570.61 (Suspension System), 570.62 (Tires)
and 570.63 (Wheels). Note: Due to the movement restriction placed on the Stretch Ducks the road test
specified in Section 570.59 (Service Brake System Stop Test) could not be performed. This test can be
easily performed and verified by Ride the Duck maintenance personnel when the Duck is placed back in
service.

Additionally, Ride the Ducks of Seattle maintenance personnel shadowed the third-party Part 570 In-
service Inspection process performed by REI and received continuing education training specifically for the
application of FMVSS Title 49 Part 570 inspections to the Seattle Ducks.

If I can be of any further service, please do not hesitate to contact my office.

Sincerely,

%w.ak

Jeffery W. Abendshien, ASNT NDT Level lll / NAARSO Level llI
Vice-President



Jeffery W. Abendshien is the vice-president of Recreation Engineering, Inc. He attended The Ohio
State University (College of Engineering) and maintains an ASNT NDT Level Il certification in multiple
disciplines. His continuing education and teaching experience includes hundreds of additional credit hours
of work from Old Dominion University and Greenville Technical College where he taught specialized
safety, inspection and testing courses. His personal inspection and testing experience includes many
unigue code specific and niche transportation industries such as amusement rides and attractions
(NAARSO and AIMS Level lll Senior inspector), marine passenger vessels including ferries, water taxis
and large (1000 ton+) excursion vessels, amphibious passenger vehicles (including commercial and
military "Ducks" and DUKW vehicles), marine racing vessels (APBA certified inspector), track racing
vehicles (NHRA and IHRA certified inspector), off-road racing vehicles in the SCORE and Best in the
Desert series (as part of the BF Goodrich racing team), commercial passenger vehicles including
historical trolleys (San Francisco) and standard vehicles such as buses and trams. Additional experience
includes aerial tramways, scenic railroads, theatrical rigging, rope access inspections and underwater
NDT (commercial diver for marine vessels, submarines and fixed structures).

Mr. Abendshien is an active member in the ASTM International Committee which is responsible for writing
and maintaining globally recognized standards and an active member of the American Society for Non-
Destructive Testing organization which is responsible for maintaining the qualification/certification of
inspection and testing personnel. He is currently Vice-Chairman of the ASTM F-24.60 committee for
Special Rides and Attractions. Mr. Abendshien has also written inspection and audit procedures,
maintenance procedures, OEM manuals and operational procedures for many specialty rides and
attractions.

Mr. Abendshien is an AIMS International Certified Professional Ride Inspector (Level Ill) and is listed by
Clark County, Nevada as an Amusement Ride Quality Assurance Inspector. He is a Level Ill (Senior)
Certified Amusement Ride Safety Inspector and Certified Operations Level | by the National Association
of Amusement Ride Safety Officials. He is also an AIMS Certified Maintenance Technician (Level I),
AIMS Certified Operations Technician (Level II) and AIMS Certified Aquatics (Level I).

Mr. Abendshien is recognized by the State of California as a Permanent Amusement Ride Qualified
Safety Inspector, as a Missouri State Authorized Amusement Ride Inspector, State of Texas recognized
Ride Inspector and is a Florida State Authorized Amusement Devices and Amusement Attractions
Inspector. He has prepared and presented curriculum at annual AIMS International safety seminars and
was presented the 1998 and 2010 AIMS Safety Seminar Harold Chance Award for best presentation. Mr.
Abendshien has also presented at annual National Association of Amusement Ride Safety Officials safety
seminars and International Code Council Educode seminars. He has also prepared and presented many
private lectures and training to government officials and individual clients.

Mr. Abendshien has been a member of the American Society of Mechanical Engineers, American Society
for Non-Destructive Testing, American Welding Society, International Association of Amusement Parks
and Attractions, the American Society for Testing and Materials International, Amusement Industry
Manufacturers and Suppliers International, National Association of Amusement Ride Safety Officials,
Association for Challenge Course Technology, Professional Ropes Course Association and the United
States Institute for Theater Technology.

Mr. Abendshien continues to participate in, and over-see, onsite safety inspections globally.
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h DRIVER/VEHICLE EXAMINATION REPORT : Aspen 3.0.0.17
Report Number: WALUO008000249

Washington State Patrol

. . i 08/07/2017
....-s« Commercial Vehicle Enforcement Section Inspection Date:
UTC Pc:)m Box 42614 Start: 10:09 AMPT End: 11:03:00 AM PT
MIEEINETTY Olympia, WA 98504-2614 Inspection Level: VIl - Jurisdictional Mandate
(360) 596-3815 safetynet@wsp.wa.gov HM Inspection Type: None
RIDE THE DUCKS OF SEATTLE Driver:
516 BROAD STREET : License#: State:
SEATTLE, WA 88109 , Date of Birth:
USDOT#: 01805507 Phone#: (206)441-4687 CoDriver:
MC/MX: Faxd#t: Licensed#: State:
State#: Date of Birth:
Location: 4203 9TH AVE NW SEATTLE MilePost: Shipper:
Highway: Origin: SEATTLE, WA Bill of Lading:
County: KING, WA Destination:SEATTLE, WA Cargo: EMPTY
VEHICLE IDENTIFICATION |
Unit Type Make Year State Plate # Equipment ID VIN GVWR CVSA# CVSA lssucd # OOS Sticker
1 BU GMC 1845 WA DUCK4 DUCK4 35315896 19,605 i
BRAKE ADJUSTMENTS
Axde # 1 2 3
Right N/A N/A N/A
Left N/A N/A NIA
Chamber HYDR HYDR HYDR
VIOLATIONS
Vio Code Section Unit OGS Citation # Verify Crash Violations Discovered
390.21A 390.21(a) . 1 N N N  Not marked in accordance with regulations
393.95F 393.95(h 1 N N N No/insufficient warning devices
HazMat: No HM Transported. Placard: No Cargo Tank:

Special Checks: No Data for Special Checks. |

The undersigned certifies that all violations noted on this report have been comected and action has been taken to insure compliance with all applicable Federal and State regulations.
Signature Of Motor Garrier X, Title: Date;

Badage#. Copy Received By: Page 10f 1 || Il

i\//%@ % et 1905507 WA WALI008000249
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Duck 4 — Right Rear USDOT #

Duck 4 — Left Side USDOT #



Duck 4 — Full left side, identical to right side.
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Non-Destructive Testing Criteria

NDT Inspection Procedures

RTD Seattle Fleet Operations



Memorandum for Record January 17t 2017
To: MISTRAS Group Inc.

From: Joe M. Hatten, Maintenance Manager, Ride the Ducks of Seattle

Subject: NDT Standard Operating Procedures

Purpose:

This document provides testing criteria for the Non-Destructive Testing of Truck Duck steer axles, steer axle spindles,
and drive axles owned by Ride the Ducks of Seattle. A copy of this document shall be provided to the testing agency
contracted to perform the Non-Destructive Testing. The original version of this SOP will be maintained by the
Maintenance Manager for Ride the Ducks of Seattle.

Overview:

Ride the Ducks of Seattle is committed to providing the safest amphibious tours in the country. This commitment
requires verification that current equipment and replacement parts are in proper operating condition at all times. To
ensure this commitment is met, Ride the Ducks of Seattle has enlisted the service of Mistras Group Inc. to provide Non-
Destructive Testing of several suspension and drivetrain components. The purpose for this memorandum packet is to
establish parameters for quality testing of the vehicles as specified herein utilizing Nondestructive Inspection Methods.

Criteria:

Ride the Ducks of Seattle intends to employ the services of Mistra Group Inc. for nondestructive testing services on
preventative inspections and for inspection of newly acquired Duck components. Ride the Ducks begins annual DOT
preventative maintenance inspections every September. During these inspections, various components and/or systems
of the Ducks will be disassembled and inspected. It is during this period that the Non-Destructive services as defined in
this memorandum shall take place. Additionally, Ride the Ducks of Seattle intends to utilize Non-Destructive testing for
newly purchased or acquisitions of replacement steer axle housings, drive axle housings and steer axle spindles. It is
mandatory that newly purchased or acquired parts be tested for serviceability prior to being entered into the parts
supply inventory for Ride the Ducks of Seattle.

Tracking and Record Keeping:

Ride the Ducks of Seattle has implemented a tracking system, including permanent component serial numbers, to define
each component and to maintain location and status of all steer axle housings, drive axle housings, and steer spindles.
Identification for each component are as follows:

Truck Duck Axle/s Data

- TD Steer axle housings
0 Part#7521744
0 Permanent serial number identification will begin with TDS (Truck Duck Steer). This will be followed by a
numeric designator.
- TD Rear/Drive Axle housings
O Part#7521728
0 Permanent serial number identification will begin with TDR (Truck Duck Rear). This will be followed by a
numeric designator.
- TD Steer axle spindles
0 Original Part number #7521680, replacement part #4316SP.
0 Permanent serial number identification is designated by three numbers beginning with 001.



Stretch Duck Axle/s Data

- SD Steer axle housings
O Part#7411366
0 Permanent serial number identification will begin with SDS (Stretch Duck Steer). This will be followed by
a numeric designator.
- SD Drive Axle housings
O Part#7411297
0 Permanent serial number identification will begin with SDR (Stretch Duck Rear). This will be followed by
a numeric designator.
- SD Tag Axle housings
O Part#7411298
0 Permanent serial number identification will begin with SDR (Stretch Duck Rear). This will be followed by
a numeric designator.
- SD Steer axle spindles
0 Original Part number #7521680, replacement part #4316SP.
0 Permanent serial number identification is designated by three numbers beginning with SD001.

The standards and procedures set forth in this memorandum will be utilized and maintained by Ride the Ducks of
Seattle. The specifications contained in this SOP will be subject to amending by Ride the Ducks of Seattle when or if the
industry standards change, vendor requirements need to be modified or we, the requesting customer, need to adjust
our criteria.

Field Testing for In-Service Vehicles

Appointments:

All request for NDT appointments shall be made in advance and will include relevant information for component test
area, part numbers and permanent serial numbers. On the date and time of the requested appointment, a
Nondestructive inspector will arrive at the Ride the Ducks of Seattle maintenance facility, 4203 9*" Ave. NW, Seattle, WA
98107, with all require tools and equipment to conduct Non-Destructive Testing of all specified and pre-staged
equipment.

Testing Process:

The standard testing procedure shall be in accordance with ASTM E709 Standard Guide for Magnetic Particle Testing
(MT) which is Mistras procedure 100-MT-001 for material and welds. The criteria of acceptance will be No Cracks. This
standard will remain in place for all inspections. Any changes to the requested ASTM-E709 criteria will be made in
writing by the Director of Operations or Maintenance Manager for Ride the Ducks of Seattle.

Preparation of the areas to be tested will be done by Ride the Ducks of Seattle. Inspection areas shall be clean and free
of all foreign debris. Paint, slag, rust, grease, oil or dirt should be removed by applying a cleaning solvent, the use of a
steam cleaner, or a wire wheel.

The axle and spindle testing will be conducted in accordance with all regulatory guidelines. Ride the Ducks of Seattle has
determined, and the following pages will define, the primary and secondary areas that are to be tested on each
component.



Primary Inspections require Magnetic Particle Inspection by a certified Inspector per the requirements of SNT-TC-1A.

Secondary Inspections require Visual Inspection (VT) by Ride the Ducks of Seattle. Should for any reason Ride the Ducks
determine there are issues with these areas, Magnetic Particle Inspection by a certified NDT Inspector per the
requirements of SNT-TC-1A may be requested. If Secondary Inspections are requested, all surfaces to be inspected will
be prepared in accordance with the requirements of ASTM E709 and this document.

During the testing, any and all indications during the screening test will be brought to the attention of the on-duty
maintenance supervisor. The maintenance supervisor will visually confirm and address any indication with an emery
cloth or wire wheel, thus ensuring that the indication is not a result of surface marring. The area of indication will be
tested again for confirmation. If the indication is still present the tester will mark the location of the indication for
reference and/or further examination.

Parts that continue to show indications, following the confirmation test, will be removed for possible repair or disposal.
Replacement parts that have been previously verified as indication or crack free will be drawn from the Ride the Ducks
of Seattle parts inventory and will be installed as replacement.

In-House Testing for restock and replacement components

All request for Non-Destructive testing of restock components will take place at the Mistras Group Inc. facility at 7820 S.
210%™ St. #110, Kent, WA 98032. Components for testing will include a detailed work order request and be accompanied
by all relevant identification numbers.

Testing Process:

The standard criteria of acceptance will be, No Cracks. This standard will remain in place for all inspections. Any
changes to the criteria will be made in writing by the Director of Operations or Maintenance Manager for Ride the Ducks
of Seattle.

Preparation of the areas to be tested will be in accordance with ASTM E709. The surface of the part to be examined
should be essentially clean, dry, and free of contaminants such as dirt, oil, grease, loose rust, loose mill sand, loose mill
scale, lint, thick paint, welding flux/slag, and weld splatter that might restrict particle movement. When examining a
local area, such as a weld, the areas adjacent to the surface to be examined, must also be cleaned to the extent
necessary to permit detection of indications. Paint, slag, rust, grease, oil or dirt should be removed by applying a
cleaning solvent, the use of a steam cleaner, or a wire wheel or other method which will not smear the metal surface.

After all testing has been completed, the testing facility will provide Ride the Ducks of Seattle with a packet containing a
copy of all items tested and the individual test results sheet per component. The completed paperwork will be filed and
retained at the Ride the Ducks of Seattle Maintenance Facility for the entire life cycle of the component and for
historical references.



Truck Steer Axle Primary Inspection Area:
1. Primary inspection (Magnetic Particle Inspection Required) of the external welds surrounding the Kingpin and
internal welds securing the Kingpin to the housing

Kingpin

1




Truck Steer Axle Secondary Inspection Area:
2. Secondary Inspection (Visual Inspection unless requested for Magnetic Particle Inspection) of the entire width
of the steer cup and around the circumference

Kingpin
L 1




Truck Steer Axle Secondary Inspection Area (cont.):
2. Secondary Inspection (Visual Inspection unless requested for Magnetic Particle Inspection) Steer cup ring to
the butt-weld on square axle housing shaft

Stretch Duck Steer Axle Primary Inspection Area:




Stretch Duck Steer Axle Secondary Inspection Area:




Rear Axle Primary Inspection Area:
1. Primary inspection (Magnetic Particle Inspection Required) of Spindle end to the weld at the union point with
the housing.

Rear Axle Secondary Inspection Area:
2. Secondary Inspection (Visual Inspection unless requested for Magnetic Particle Inspection) of Spindle union
weld to the axle butt-weld on the square housing




Steer Axle Spindle Primary Insp Area:
1. Primary inspection (Magnetic Particle Inspection Required) Spindle shaft to flange union.

Steer Axle Spindle Secondary Insp Area:

10



Conclusion

The procedures that have been adopted in this memorandum are in pursuant to our ever evolving safety standards. If
there is a need for modifications or re-assessment of the process all parties involved will be notified appropriately in
writing providing any and all modifications. If there are any questions or concerns regarding this memorandum, they
should be addressed to Ride the Ducks of Seattle, at 516" Broad St, Seattle, WA 98109, phone number 206-441 4647.

Ryan Johnson Joe M. Hatten
Director of Operations Maintenance Manager

11
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Model Part NG:
. Backeye®360 | Backeye®360
Features Benefits ASL360 BN360
. . . Bespoke views Fixed views
Customizable triggers Best view of each maneuver . :
8 triggers 3 triggers

Dual views on monitor

View the most critical areas

Bespoke image

Fixed dual views

views
Customized joins between Seamless surround image optimized for v v
camera images your vehicle
® —— .
Flexible camera positioning Backeye _360 System will still be accurate if v v
cameras installed off-center
Full-screen 360° view Entire screen can be devoted to the 360° view v v
ﬁ\utomatlc light balancing Easy to view, balanced image v x
etween camera images
'Pie dish' effect Reducgd image stretch, so_that distant people v x
and objects appear recognizable
R46 Approved Suitable to replace Class V and Class VI mirrors x v
USA/Mexico: +1 (260) 766-4343 sales@brigade-inc.com  www.brigade-inc.com



BRIGADE

Modeél Part No:

Which system is for you?

Backeye®360 BN360
Regulation 46 approved.

Full screen 360 or a twin image split screen view.

In split screen mode, the 360 ‘birds eye view’ is permanently displayed together with
the blind spot to the front, rear, left or right of the vehicle — auto-switching between
these according to vehicle maneuver.

This means that the driver always has both the 360 ‘birds eye view’ plus a
conventional view of the area into which the vehicle is moving.

- S mmm o $9T e

Backeye®360 ASL360

Suitable for most vehicle and mobile plant machines.

Full screen 360 plus a flexible and wide range of bespoke split screen viewing options.
‘Pie Dish’ image correction feature allows a wider area around the machine to be
displayed to the driver, and provides a more natural view of objects that are at some
distance from the vehicle.

Automatic light balancing between camera images makes for easier viewing on days
when one side of the vehicle is bathed in bright sunlight and the other is in shadow.

e one s ont sl
A S = e SO e

Canada:

+1 (604) 245 1752

i

contact@brigade-electronics.ca  www.brigade-electrionics.ca



odel Part No:

360° CAMERA SYSTEM

BN360-000 - Backeye®360 system

4483

¢ |P69K cameras

Contents
e 1 x BN360-ECU-10

Power
® Power consumption: 15 Watts

¢ 12-24Vdc ® 4 x BN360-100C cameras e Current: 1.23 Amps
¢ 1 x BN360-VBV-L4015 video-out cable
¢ Size (WxHxD) ECU to connect to SELECT range monitor. Durability & Standards
170 x 126.4 x 36mm Note: Monitor and camera o Mechan?cal vibration: 1G
6.7 x 5 x 1.4 inches extension cables not included * Mechanical shock: 50G
* Operating temperature:
e Size (WxHxD) Camera Features -30to +75°C / -22 to 167°F
35.4 x 60.7 x 45.8mm * 360° full screen image or split screen * CE marked
1.4 x 2.4 x 1.8 inches option * EMC approved: E

o Triggered views (rear, left and right) * HALT tested

® 4 x ultra-wide viewing angle cameras
(HxV) 185° x142°

* 1/3” CMOS sensor

* TV system: NTSC

BN360 CABLES AND ADAPTERS

e 2 year warranty
Note: A calibration kit is
required for installation.

BN360-L120 20m/66’ camera cable 4493
BN360-L115 15m/49’ camera cable 4495
BN360-L110 10m/33’ camera cable 4496
BN360-L105 5m/16’ camera cable 4498
BN360-L1025 2.5m/8’ camera cable 4499
AC-305 Splitter cable for MDR (1 required per camera) 4903
MOUNTING BRACKETS
BN360-100C-BKT01 Adaptable mounting bracket 4649
Can be shaped to allow installation on non-vertical surfaces
BN360-100C-BKT02 Mounting bracket to adjust camera angle 4714
BE360-CD Deflector to shield camera from knocks 4701
(To be used with BN360-100C-BKT02 Mounting bracket)
BN360-100C-BKT03 Deflector to shield camera from knocks 4743
REQUIRED FOR ARTICULATED VEHICLES
BN360-Enclosure  IP66 Enclosure kit to enable ECU to be installed 4723

on outside of vehicle
Note: Coiled cable kit or wireless connector also required

SK-15-05 3-camera Backeye®360 cable kit for articulated vehicles 5066

10
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Model Part No:

360° CAMERA SYSTEM

ASL360-SV - Backeye®360 4328
Contents Power
* IP68 cameras o 1 x ASL360-ECU e Power consumption:
e 4 x ASL360-CM2 C : 0.5 Watt
* Size (WxHxD) ECU Note: Monitor, camera cables and  « Cyrent:
295 x 35 x 120mm adapters NOT included Camera: 0.04 Amps
8.8 x 1.4 x 4.7 inches Features ECU: 0.4 Amps
* Size (WxHxD) Camera ® 360° full screen or split screen options Durability & Standards
70 x 50 x 62mm ¢ Flexible blend widths and positioning ¢ Operating temperature:
. * Up to 30 frames per second -40 to +85°C / -40 to +185F
2.7x2x24 inches e Self-monitoring to eliminate frozen e CE marked
e 2 year warranty images * EMC approved: E
 Triggered views
® 4 x ultra-wide viewing angle cameras Note: A calibration kit is
(HxV) 185 x 180° . . .
o 1/4" CMOS sensor required for installation.
o TV system: PAL Available to Brigade trained
fitters only
ASL360 CABLES AND ADAPTERS
ASL360-L120 20m/66’ camera cable 4333
ASL360-L115 15m/49’ camera cable 4334
ASL360-L110 10m/33’ camera cable 4335
ASL360-L1025 2.5m/8’ camera cable 4336
AC-054 2.5m/8’ adapter cable to connect ECU to monitor
via AC-016 / AC-024 (BNC B to Phono A) 4340
AC-016 Adapter cable to connect AV/Phono to Elite monitor 2150
AC-024 Adapter cable to connect AV/Phono to Select monitor 3183
MOUNTING BRACKET
BE360-CD Deflector to shield camera from knocks 4701
REQUIRED FOR ARTICULATED VEHICLES
BN360-Enclosure  IP66 Enclosure kit to enable ECU to be installed 4723

on outside of vehicle
Note: Coiled cable kit or wireless connector also required

' 11
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Model Part No:

BN360 360° CAMERA MONITOR SYSTEMS

Complete kits including monitor, Backeye®360 camera system, cables and adapters

SE-7104F-100 - 360 camera monitor system for large rigid vehicles 4618
¢ 1 x VBV-7104FM - 10.4" monitor See individual products for
« 1 x BN360-000 360 system detailed specifications

e 1 x BN360-L110 - 10m/33’ camera cable * 2 year system warranty
¢ 2 x BN360-L115 - 15m/49’ camera cables
¢ 1 x BN360-L120 - 20m/66’ camera cable

SE-770-100 - 360 camera monitor system for large rigid vehicles 4804
e 1 x VBV-770M 7" monitor See individual products for
« 1 x BN360-000 360 system detailed specifications

o 1 x BN360-L110 - 10m/33’ camera cable * 2 year system warranty
* R46 Approved
* 2 x BN360-L115 - 15m/49’ camera cables

¢ 1 x BN360-L120 - 20m/66’ camera cable

ASL360 360° CAMERA MONITOR SYSTEMS

Complete kits including monitor, Backeye®360 camera system, cables and adapters

SE-770-000 - 360 camera monitor system for large rigid vehicles 4803
e 1 x VBV-770M - 7” monitor See individual products for
detailed specifications
¢ 1 x ASL-360SV 360 system
e 1 x ASL-L110 - 10m/33’ camera cable * 2 year system warranty

® 2 x ASL-L115 - 15m/49’ camera cables
* 1 x ASL-L120 - 20m/66’ camera cable
¢ 1 x AC-024 - phono adapter cable

¢ 1 x AC-054 - adapter cable

USA/Mexico:

+1 (260) 766-4343 sales@brigade-inc.com  www.brigade-inc.com



Exhibit 18



Backsense-
Radar Sensors

BRIGADE

Vehicle
Safety
Solutions




Large vehicles,

difficult conditions,

greater danger!

Industries such as mining, quarrying, agriculture,
construction and waste all use huge machines and
plant equipment, which by their very nature pose a
danger if they are not managed safely. Blind spots
tend to be much larger on these vehicles and include
not only the rear and nearside but also the front,
especially with elevated driver positions. Terrains are
harsher, vehicles are exposed to the elements more
aggressively whilst thick dust and darkness decrease
visibility further.

The ISO 5006 standard for earthmoving equipment
addresses the problem of blind spots around a
vehicle and states that the operator must be able to
“see around the machine to enable proper, effective
and safe operation” Camera monitor systems provide
this to some extent, but in difficult environmental
conditions a range of complementary devices are vital
to give visual and audible operator warnings.

The UK Health & Safety Executive (HSE) warned

about the dangers of poorly managed transport in

the workplace after a coal mining company was fined
following the death of two men crushed by a 100 tonne
capacity dump truck. The dump truck driver could not
see their vehicle because it was in a blind spot.

“Earth-moving vehicles have poor
visual fields due to their large size.
It is crucial that additional steps
are taken to ensure that drivers of
these machines are aware of other
smaller vehicles around them.”

Norrie Buchanan, HSE Inspector

Online at brigade-electronics.com Call on +44 (0)1322 420300 or visit your local stockist



Backsense”

radar detection

Brigade’s Backsense radar sensor systems are
designed to detect people and objects in blind
spots, significantly reducing accidents. They detect
stationary and moving objects, providing the driver
with in-cab visual and audible warnings - alerting
the operator whose attention can not be focused
on all danger areas. Backsense works effectively
in harsh environments and in poor visibility
including darkness, smoke and fog.

systems




The Backsense® r

In-cab display and Backsense® radar

322 420300 or visit your local stockist




Programmable Backsense”

BS-8000
= Configurable:

= Detection area
= 3m (10ft) — 30m (98.5ft) length
= 2m (6.5ft) — 10m (33ft) width

5 detection zones

= Blind zones — system ignores objects in
specified zones, e.g. vehicle bodywork

= Trigger output length — controls when
other equipment, e.g. a warning alarm,
is activated

= Buzzer starting zone — audible alert can
be set to activate after the visual signal

= Simple-to-use PC-based configuration
software — no bespoke programming
equipment required

Example of Extreme configurable zones

0.0m 24m 3.6m 4.8m 6.0m 7.2m

Fixed Backsense®

= Fixed detection length and width divided into
5 equal detection zones

= Buzzer and trigger output activate in all
zones on detection

BS-7030

= 3m (10ft) length x 2.5m (8ft) width
detection area

= 5 x 0.6m (2ft) detection zones

BS-7045

= 4.5m (15ft) length x 3.5m (11.5ft) width
detection area

= 5 x 0.9m (3ft) detection zones

BS-7060

= 6m (19.5ft) length x 4.5m (15ft) width
detection area

= 5x 1.2m (4ft) detection zones

0.0m 09m 1.8m 2.7m 3.6m 4.5m

Example of Elite fixed zones

Diagrams are for illustration purposes only. Detection is affected by an object’s physical properties and location. '



Benefits of
Backsense®

Safety

v/ Helps prevent collisions

v’ Reduces accidents and fatalities, injury and
sickness time

v Meets Health and Safety requirements

Efficiency
v Saves collision damage cost and downtime
v Saves on third party claims

Compatibility

v Can be set up to trigger reversing alarms,
safety lights, camera systems and digital
recorders

v’ Unaffected by moisture, dust, vibration, heat,
cold, UV, snow, ice, high wind, water and mud

Backsense” for lighter
duty machines

Suitable for light machines with
extensive or varying blind spots, such
as telescopic handlers; and machines
operating in confined spaces, such as
small wheeled low-loading shovels.

Online at brigade-electronics.com Call on +44 (0)1322 420300 or visit your local stockist
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Backsense® for Mining, Quarry and Construction

Backsense is the answer where
machine size and difficult environmental
conditions, such as dust clouds or
darkness, make manoeuvring particularly
dangerous. It reduces the risk of

large machines reversing into smaller
machines or overturning following
collision with a stock pile.

It is equally beneficial for forward
movement, with machine design often
creating large blind spots - for instance
many dumper trucks cannot see objects
or people on the ground as far as 20
metres in front of them. It is possible

to calibrate out bodywork and vehicle
protrusions in the detection area to
prevent false alarms. Backsense also
reduces risk for site workers wearing ear
defenders who may be unable to hear
reversing alarms.

Backsense® for the
Refuse Industry

Narrow-beam options are
especially useful when
manoeuvring close to parked
cars, and bin-lift mechanism
detection can be programmed
out to prevent false alerts.




To order or for more information on
Brigade’s vehicle safety solutions;
Y[ brigade-electronics.com

+44 (0)1322 420300
or visit your local stockist

Brigade's extensive portfolio of machine safety systems includes:
* Backeye®360 Camera monitor systems

= Camera monitor systems

* ‘White sound’ reversing and warning alarms

= Radar obstacle detection systems

= Mobile digital recording

= Ultrasonic obstacle detection systems

Brigade products are designed to improve safety in and around
commercial vehicles and mobile plant. Safety systems do not replace
driver best practice. Please take care when manoeuvring.

LIT0200 © Copyright Brigade Electronics Plc 2014

GADE

Brigade Electronics Group plc

Brigade Electronics (UK) Ltd (Head Office)
Brigade House, The Mills
Station Road, South Darenth
DA4 9BD United Kingdom
Tel: +44 (0)1322 420300
Fax: +44 (0)1322 420343
E-Mail: sales@brigade-electronics.com
brigade-electronics.com

Brigade Elektronik GmbH
HavelstraBe 21
24539 Neumtinster Germany
Tel: +49 (0) 4321 555 360
Fax: +49 (0) 4321 555 361
E-Mail: info@brigadegmbh.de

Brigade Electronics Inc
215 E Pearl St.
Portland, IN 47371
USA
Tel: +1 (260) 766-4343
E-Mail: sales@brigade-inc.com

Brigade Elettronica srl
Via Andrea del Castagno, 12
50132 - Florence
ltaly
Tel: +39 055-245943
Fax: +44 (0) 1322 420343
E-Mail: info-italia@brigade-electronics.com

Brigade Electronika (PTY) Ltd
P.O. Box 17490
Lyttleton 0140 RSA
South Africa
Tel: +27 (0) 72 757 7166
Fax: +27 (0) 86 718 2775
E-Mail: brigade@ballmail.co.za

Brigade Electronique Sarl
22 Rue Pierre Bontemps
72000 Le Mans
France
Tel: +33 (0) 2 23 61 08 97
Fax +33 (0) 9 70 63 23 53
E-Mail: info@brigade-electronique.fr

Brigade Electronics BV
Hinmanweg 11F
7575 BE Oldenzaal
The Netherlands
Tel: +31 541 53 18 01
Fax: +31 541 53 24 52
E-Mail: info@brigade-electronics.nl
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FLEET TRACKING

We provide the most efficient solutionsfor tracking and managing
your fleet, regardless of size. Get a competitive advantage and
outperform your competition with real time fleet tracking.

FEATURES:

Geo-FenceAlerts

Excessive I dle Detection

I gnition On/Off Reporting
Scheduled Maintenance

Hard Speed, Brake and Turn Alerts

Web-Based User I nterface with
Google maps

Driver Score Card

Dimensions: 1.84 x 3.0 x 0.78”
Weight: 3.5 0z (999)

BENEFITS:

Reduce Fuel Costs

Reduce Labor Costs

Increase Productivity

Improve Driver Safety/Behavior
Increase Fleet Security/Theft protect

Lower Insurance Premiums

Please contact us for pricing. We
would be happy to provide the
best possible solution for you!

ST-2500

Contact us:

249 Main Street
Belleville, Ml 48111
Main Office: 734.699.7633
www.safetytrack.net
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Assignment Report
Motor Carrier Safety

Was a CR conducted between 6-18 months after the permit

New Entrant? [ Yes No . LI Yes [ No
was issued?
1. Investigator(s): Gagne 2. Assignment No.: 116178
3. Current Date: 2/2/2017 4. Date of Activity: 2/1/2017
5. Carrier Name: Ride the Ducks of Seattle
6. Company ID: M36686 7. Industry Code: 232 8. USDOT #: 1905507
9. Carrier is: Intrastate Yes [ No [l Intraand Interstate
10. Destination Check
= Has a copy of the Destination Check Safety plan been attached? [] Yes [ No
=  Any special emphasis placed on the destination check? ] Yes [ No
= Describe Special Emphasis:
11. Compliance Review
» SIRating: (] Satisfactory [J Unsatisfactory [J Conditional Not Rated
= Number of Current Vehicles: 10 = Number of Current Drivers: 24
= Total Miles Prior Year: 95,460 =  Recordable Accidents Prior Year: 1
= Accident Ratio:
CSA Investigation: [ Yes No Full Investigation [(JFocused Investigation
Carrier Type: Passenger Carrier [] Property Carrier [ Other:
12. Part B Violations
Part Violations Part Violations Part Violations
382/40 383 387
390 391 392
395 396 397

13. Vehicle Inspection Data

MB 16+
Inspections 5
Defective Vehicles 0
0OO0S Vehicles 0
Level 7




Assignment Report

Motor Carrier Safety
14. Vehicle Inspection Violations

Comments:

15. Driver Inspection Violations

Medical Card Medical Waiver Hours of Service Driver’s License

Comment:

16. Relevant Carrier History:

On May 3, 2016, the commission conditionally approved and adopted a settlement agreement in Docket
TE-151906 Order 08 between Ride the Ducks and staff. In the agreement the commission suspended
$152,000 of a total penalty ($308,000) on the condition that Ride the Ducks commits no new violations of
the following laws or regulations for a period of 24 months from the date of the order:

(a) 49 CFR Part 383.37; Drivers must possess valid commercial driver licenses;

(b) 49 CFR Part 391.45; Drivers must be medically examined and certified;

(c) 49 CFR Part 391.51 (b) (7); Company must maintain medical examiner's certificates in each driver
qualification file;

(d) 49 CFR Part 395.5; Company must enforce maximum driving time rules;

(e) 49 CFR Part 395.8; Drivers must record their duty status for each 24-hour; and

() RCW 81.04.530.; Company must establish and maintain a controlled substance and alcohol program.
In accordance with TE-151906 an investigation was conducted on July 11, 2016 and completed on July 28,
2016 covering the period from the closing date of the previous investigation, December 15, 2015 through
July 11, 2016. That investigation found one violation of CFR 391.21 (a) Using a driver who has not
completed and furnished an employment application, and three violations of CFR 395.8(h) (5) Failing to
record the name of the city, town or village, with State abbreviation where each change of duty status
occurs. There were no acute or critical violations discovered. No further action was recommended at the
completion of the investigation.

17. Findings:

Ride the Ducks of Seattle LLC has corrected all previously discovered violations. No violations were
discovered at the completion of this unrated review.

18. Recommended Safety Action: Yes [ No

Require the company to submit a compliance plan in response to the 15 day letter requirement.
Require the company to submit a compliance plan in response to the 385 letter requirement (45 days).
Recheck — Safety Investigation (Date:  2/15/2018 )

Revisit to recheck a specific issue (Date: )

Send the company a compliance letter. Require a response: [ Yes [ No
Issue administrative penalties.

Issue a complaint.

oo dx oo

Stop company operations.




Assignment Report

Motor Carrier Safety
19. Is this carrier considered a high risk carrier as a result of this activity? [1 Yes [ No

Carrier accident ratio is higher than aggregate ratio.
Carrier had an out-of-service ratio 25% higher at the last vehicle inspection.

Carrier had a defect ratio 75% or higher at the last vehicle inspection.

Carrier received more than one conditional or unsatisfactory safety investigation rating in more than
one of the last four safety investigations (or less than four if four are not completed).
Other (please explain):

OO ogof

20. Additional Comments:

Ride the Ducks of Seattle has developed very proactive practices with regard to vehicle maintenance and
drivers’ hours of service. They have expressed interest in discussing their programs with other carriers
should the commission develop such a forum.

Investigator’s Signature:  Francine Gagne Date: 2/2/2017

OFFICE USE ONLY

Initial Review By: Date: 2/10/2017

Initial Reviewer’s Recommendation:  This is a non-rated follow-up compliance investigation and no

new violations or repeat violations were discovered. Agree with recommendation to conduct final

compliance investigation within 24 months from Order 08 in Docket TE-151906 (no later than May 3,
2018.

Final Review BY: i Dot Date: /15/201F

Final Reviewer’s Recommendation:  azyep with vecommendations  Cloce and file

Internal Processing

Date Closed: 02/15/2017 By:

Company Name:  Ride the Ducks of Seattle

Assignment #: 116178 Staff Assigned: Gagne



dpratt
Typewritten Text
David Pratt

dpratt
Typewritten Text
2/15/2017

dpratt
Typewritten Text
Agree with recommendations.  Close and file. 


Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission

USDOT# | Legal: RIDE THE DUCKS OF SEATTLE
1905507 Operating (DBA):
MC/MX #: State #: ES-146 Federal Tax ID: 91-1957261 (EIN)
Review Type: Non-ratable Review - Minibus/Van
Scope: Principal Office Location of Review/Audit: Company facility in the U. S. Territory:
Operation Types Interstate Intrastate
Carrier:  N/A Non-HM |Business: Corporation
Shipper: N/A N/A Gross Revenue: $9,596,062.00 for year ending: 12/31/2016
Cargo Tank: N/A
Company Physical Address:

Contact Name:

E-Mail Address:

516 BROAD STREET
SEATTLE, WA 98109

Ryan Johnson

Phone numbers: (1) 206- 441-4687

(2) 206-789-0790 Fax 206-441-4697

ryan@ridetheducksofseattle.com

Company Mailing Address:

516 BROAD STREET
SEATTLE, WA 98109

Carrier Classification

Authorized for Hire

Power units used in the U.S.:10
Percentage of time used in the U.S.:100

Does carrier transport placardable quantities of HM?  No
Is an HM Permit required?

N/A

Cargo Classification
Passengers
Equipment
Owned Term Leased Trip Leased Owned Term Leased Trip Leased
Minibus, 16+ 10 0 0

Driver Information

< 100 Miles:
>= 100 Miles:

Inter

Intra
24

Average trip leased drivers/month: 0
Total Drivers: 24

CDL Drivers: 24

2/27/2017 11:59:49 AM
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RIDE THE DUCKS OF SEATTLE Review Date:
U.S. DOT #: 1905507 State #: ES-146 02/27/2017
Part A
QUESTIONS regarding this report or the Federal Motor Carrier Safety or
rules may be addressed to the UTC Attn: Francine Gagne at:
PO Box 47250
Olympia, WA 98504-7250
Phone: (360) 664-1231 Fax: (360) 586-1150 Email: fgagne@utc.wa.gov
This report will be used to assess your safety compliance.
Person(s) Interviewed
Name: Ryan Johnson Title: Director of Operations
Name: Moti Krauthamer Title: Director of Safety
2/27/2017 11:59:49 AM Page 2 of 2 Capri 6.8.10.2
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RIDE THE DUCKS OF SEATTLE Review Date:
U.S. DOT #: 1905507 State #: ES-146 02/27/2017
Part B Violations
Safety Fitness Rating Information: OOS Vehicle (CR): 0
Total Miles Operated 95,460 Number of Vehicle Inspected (CR): 5
Recordable Accidents 0 OOS Vehicle (MCMIS): 0
Number of Vehicles Inspected (MCMIS): 0
Your proposed safety rating is :
This Review is not Rated.
Capri 6.8.10.2
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RIDE THE DUCKS OF SEATTLE Review Date:
U.S. DOT #: 1905507 State #: ES-146 02/27/2017

Part B Requirements and/or Recommendations

1. .Onderstand Why Compliance Saves Time and Money: Compliance with FMCSRs will not only save lives,
but also saves your business time and money. Tracking how much your business spends on non-compliance
activities can help you understand the many benefits of compliance to your business and why safety is good
business.

*Document and Follow Through on Action Plans: Document and follow through on action plans to ensure
the actions you are taking are creating improvement in safety management and compliance.

*NOTICE: A pattern and/or repeated violations of the same or related acute or critical regulations

(violations of the same Part in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations) will cause the maximum penalties allowed by
law to be assessed under Section 222 of the Motor Carrier Safety Improvement Act of 1999 (MCSIA). A pattern of
violations means two or more violations of acute and/or critical regulations in three or more Parts of Title 49, Code of
Federal Regulations discovered during any eligible investigation. Repeated violations means violation(s) of an acute
regulation of the same Part of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations discovered in an investigation after one or more
closed enforcement actions within a six year period and/or violation(s) of a critical regulation in the same Part of Title
49, Code of Federal Regulations discovered in an investigation after two or more closed enforcement actions within &
six year period.

*NOTICE: 49 CFR Part 391.23 requires prospective employers to, at a minimum, investigate a driver’s
employment information, crash record, and alcohol and controlled substances history from all employers the driver
worked for within the previous 3 years.

The Pre-Employment Screening Program (PSP) is a screening tool that assists motor carriers in investigating crash
history and roadside safety performance of prospective drivers. The PSP allows motor carriers to purchase 5 years
of crash data and 3 years of roadside inspection data from the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration’s
(FMCSA) Motor Carrier Management Information System (MCMIS). Records are available 24 hours a day via Web
request. Motor carriers should visit the following website for more information:
http://www.psp.fmcsa.dot.gov/Pages/default.aspx

Al motor carriers and truck drivers are needed to fight against terrorism and hijacking. You could be a

target. Protect yourself, your trucks, your cargo, and your facilities. Discuss with your employees/drivers the "Securit
Measures for Truck Drivers and Companies" which were provided and reviewed with motor carrier official. Motor
carriers should visit the following website for more information:
http://www.fmcsa.dot.gov/documents/Hijacking-Brochure.pdf

HRIOLT LSS0 A i 111111 0N Coprie02
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RIDE THE DUCKS OF SEATTLE Review Date:
U.S. DOT #: 1905507 State #: ES-146 02/27/2017

Part C

Reason for Review: Enforcement Follow-up
Planned Action: Compliance Monitoring

Parts Reviewed Certification:
325 382 383 387 390 391 392 393 39 396 397 398 399 171 172 173 177 178 180
v v v v v v v v v

Prior Reviews Prior Prosecutions Reason not Rated: Minibus/Van
11/5/2015 2/9/2016

Unsat/Unfit Information
Is the motor carrier of passengers subject to the safety fithess
procedures contained in 49 CFR part 385 subpart A, AND does it

transport passengers in a commercial motor vehicle? Yes - Intrastate

Does carrier transport placardable quantities of hazardous materials?

Unsat/Unfit rule: Not Applicable

Corporate Contact: Ryan Johnson Special Study Information:

Corporate Contact Title: Director of Operations

Remarks:

Name: Brian Tracey

Title: CEO, President, and Owner

Carrier/Shipper Name: Ride the Ducks of Seattle, LLC dba Ride the Ducks of Seattle
Date: February 27, 2017

REASON FOR THE INVESTIGATION:

Ride the Ducks of Seattle, LLC dba Ride the Ducks of Seattle (Ride the Ducks) was investigated due to a fatal accident tha
took place on September 24, 2015. Docket TE-151906, Order 06 instructs commission staff (staff) to conduct a follow-up
review within six months from January 27, 2016 and again one year from January 27, 2016. This investigation was
assigned to Special Investigator Francine Gagne as part of the work plan.

SCOPE OF THE INVESTIGATION:

On May 3, 2016, the commission conditionally approved and adopted a settlement agreement in Docket TE-151906 Order
08 between Ride the Ducks and staff. In the agreement the commission suspended $152,000 of a total penalty ($308,000)
on the condition that Ride the Ducks commits no new violations of the following laws or regulations for a period of 24
months from the date of the order:

(a) 49 CFR Part 383.37; Drivers must possess valid commercial driver licenses;

(b) 49 CFR Part 391.45; Drivers must be medically examined and certified,;

(c) 49 CFR Part 391 .51 (b) (7); Company must maintain medical examiner's certificates in each driver qualification file;

(d) 49 CFR Part 395.5; Company must enforce maximum driving time rules;

(e) 49 CFR Part 395.8; Drivers must record their duty status for each 24-hour; and

(f) RCW 81.04.530.; Company must establish and maintain a controlled substance and alcohol program.

In accordance with TE-151906 an investigation was conducted on July 11, 2016 and completed on July 28, 2016 covering
the period from the closing date of the previous investigation, December 15, 2015 through July 11, 2016. That investigation
found one violation of CFR 391.21 (a) Using a driver who has not completed and furnished an employment application, and
three violations of CFR 395.8(h) (5) Failing to record the name of the city, town or village, with State abbreviation where
each change of duty status occurs. There were no acute or critical violations discovered. No further action was
recommended at the completion of the investigation. This investigation of Ride the Ducks covers the period from the
closing date of the previous investigation, July 12, 2016 through January 18, 2017. SMS was checked at the start of the
investigation and Ride the Ducks exceeded the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration's (FMCSA) threshold and/or
was cited with one or more Acute/Critical violations within the past 24 months during an investigation. SMS shows Ride the
Ducks was involved in one recordable accident since December 15, 2015.
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RIDE THE DUCKS OF SEATTLE Review Date:
U.S. DOT #: 1905507 State #: ES-146 02/27/2017

Part C

Staff contacted Ryan Johnson (Director of Operations) on January 12, 2017 and the process of a follow-up safety
investigation was discussed. The investigation was set for January 18th at the carrier's Principle Place of Business (PPOB)
located at 4203 9th Ave NW, Seattle, WA 98107. An appointment letter and safety questionnaire was emailed to Mr.
Johnson on January 12, 2017.

Moti Krauthamer (Director of Safety) and Mr. Johnson were present at the start of the review. Safety Investigator Francine
Gagne was also present. Margaret Singbeil (Finance Manager) is no longer employed by Ride the Ducks. A comprehensive
investigation was performed and completed on February 27, 2017.

CARRIER OPERATION DESCRIPTION:
Governing Officials:

Brian Tracey, CEO, President, and Owner
Michele Coffman, General Manager

Ryan Johnson, Director of Operations
Moti Krauthamer, Director of Safety

Joe Hatten, Maintenance Manager

Ride the Ducks filed with the Washington State Secretary of State in April 1999. Ride the Ducks is a for-hire excursion
service carrier providing specialized land and water tours in amphibious vehicles in Seattle. Ride the Ducks operates only ir
the greater Seattle area. Ride the Ducks currently operates ten "Truck Duck" (converted military amphibious vehicle)
vehicles with a GVWR up to 20,500 Ibs. Ride the Ducks currently has 24 CDL drivers. Since December 15, 2015, Ride the
Ducks employed 37 CDL drivers. Ride the Ducks reported an annual gross revenue of $9,565,062 for the fiscal year ending
on December 31, 2015. Ride the Ducks houses its vehicles inside at its PPOB. Ride the Ducks reported operating 95,460
miles in the previous twelve months. Ride the Ducks was not involved in any emergency relief efforts since December 15,
2015. As a result of the September 24, 2015, accident Ride the Ducks changed its route and no longer uses the Aurora
Bridge. Ride the Ducks tours now feature two employees. One employee is responsible for the operation of the vehicle and
one is responsible for the tour narration.

PRE-INVESTIGATION:

On January 12, 2017, an appointment letter and safety questionnaire was emailed to Ryan Johnson, Director of Operations
at Ride the Ducks explaining the investigation process, the records that would need to be reviewed and the information the
carrier would need to make available. The records and documents that were requested were as follows:

Accident Information:

A list of all accidents for the past 365 days from date of review.

1. Including: driver's full name;

2. Accident date;

3. Number of injuries or fatalities;

4. Number of vehicles towed due to disabling damage.

5. Indicate whether or not driver was cited for a moving violation.

Quialification Files:

Qualification files for all drivers used within the past 12 months.

If they had drivers assigned to other locations, be prepared to identify each driver's status.

1. Terminal location;

2. Local vs. long haul;

3. Type of equipment operated,;

4. Company or leased.

Insurance & Economic Documentation:

A current copy of valid insurance.

A current copy of Form MCS-150.

A current copy of your Washington state authority.

Equipment Maintenance:

All maintenance files and records for each unit, including leased units. Files and records including evidence of annual
inspections, repair receipts, maintenance schedules, certifications or qualifications of persons performing annual
inspections and brake repair and adjustments.

Copies of daily vehicle inspection reports, (DVIR's) for the last three months.

Drug and Alcohol Records:

All administrative records related to alcohol and controlled substances testing.

If you are enrolled with a consortium, obtain the current list of drivers for your company.

PRTIZOLT 18957 A Peoe 2ot | NN AW LA Copri 68102

CLQWOLUWALGTAA



RIDE THE DUCKS OF SEATTLE Review Date:
U.S. DOT #: 1905507 State #: ES-146 02/27/2017

Part C

Other records including:

1. Annual report for previous year;

2. Pre-employment test results for all drivers hired in the last 365 days;

3. Random selection list and test results;

4. Educational materials provided to drivers;

5. Company written drug and alcohol policy.

Ride the Ducks completed the safety questionnaire and emailed it back on January 13, 2017. Ride the Ducks was
cooperative and made all records available.

CDLIS (DRIVER LICENSE) CHECK:

20 commercial driver licenses were checked through CDLIS on January 17, 2017. Each driver had at least a class C
commercial driver license with a passenger endorsement. 12 of the driver licenses checked are non-excepted intrastate
and eight of the 20 are non-excepted interstate. See part 383 for details.

AUTHORITY

Ride the Ducks is a for-hire passenger carrier operating in intrastate commerce and has a valid Charter and Excursion Bus
Certificate, ES-146 issued by the commission. Ride the Ducks operates under the USDOT number 1905507. On
September 28, 2015, the commission ordered an emergency suspension of Ride the Ducks' excursion service carrier
authority in Docket TE-151906, Order 01. The commission subsequently entered Order 05 and lifted the suspension on
December 22, 2015. Order 05 did not lift the suspension of Ride the Ducks' "Stretch Ducks." Ride the Ducks resumed
operations in January 2016 and is not currently operating any "Stretch Duck" vehicles. The "Stretch Duck" license plates
have been removed from the vehicles.

INSURANCE

Ride the Ducks is a for-hire passenger carrier operating in intrastate commerce and is required to maintain a minimum
level of public liability of $5,000,000. Insurance was checked through the commission's SharePoint Portal. Ride the Ducks
maintains $5,000,000 coverage. There has been no lapse in coverage since December 15, 2015. See Part 387 for details.

RED FLAG DRIVERS:
No Red Flag drivers were found at the start of the investigation.

DRUG AND ALCOHOL SUPPLEMENTAL REVIEW
This is a follow-up comprehensive investigation therefore a Drug and Alcohol Supplemental Review is not required.

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS SUPPLEMENTAL REVIEW
Ride the Ducks does not transport hazardous materials.

INVESTIGATION:
Parts 171, 172, 173, 177, 178, 180, & 397 Hazardous Materials
Ride the Ducks does not transport any hazardous materials.

Part 376 Lease and Interchange of Vehicles
Ride the Ducks does not lease vehicles.

Part 380 Special Training

Ride the Ducks does not operate long combination vehicles (double trailers exceeding 80,000 Ibs. GVWR) in commerce
and was not checked for LCV driver training certification. Ride the Ducks has entry-level drivers and had entry-level driver
certificates on file for all drivers checked.

Part 382 Controlled Substances and Alcohol Use and Testing

Ride the Ducks is currently enrolled in a random controlled substance and alcohol testing program with Aurico Reports, Inc.
(Aurico). Aurico is located at 116 W. Eastman Street Arlington Heights, IL 60004. The contact at Aurico is Joe Conerty. Mr.
Conerty's telephone number is (312) 698-0275.

Aurico has a program named E-Screen which allows Ride the Ducks staff to pull (but not modify) records such as
summaries and test results. Ride the Ducks can add or remove drivers as needed. Draws are made quarterly for random
drug testing. Mr. Johnson is notified of the random selections. Investigator Gagne withessed Mr. Johnson pull up the
requested reports from E-Screen.
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RIDE THE DUCKS OF SEATTLE Review Date:
U.S. DOT #: 1905507 State #: ES-146 02/27/2017

Part C

The current list of drivers in the random pool is compliant.

The testing rate required for controlled substances is 50% and 10% for alcohol of the average number of drivers. Ride the
Ducks quarterly average number of drivers was 20 for 2016 requiring 10 controlled substance and two alcohol tests.

Ride the Ducks tested at above required rates by completing 34 controlled substance and 15 alcohol tests for 2016.

Mr. Johnson is responsible for handling Ride the Ducks' drug and alcohol testing program and is specifically named as the
Drug Employee Representative (DERR) in Ride the Ducks' drug and alcohol policy. Mr. Johnson received at least 60
minutes of training on alcohol misuse and controlled substance and provided a certificate.

No positive tests were identified. No reasonable suspicion tests were conducted.

Ride the Ducks hired one CDL driver since July 12, 2016. The pre-employment test result for Daniel Droge was checked to
verify the driver did not operate a CDL vehicle prior to Ride the Ducks receiving a negative test result for that driver. The
drug test results compared to the driver's record of duty status (RODS) show that no driver operated a commercial motor
vehicle before Ride the Ducks received negative drug test results.

No post-accident tests were required.

Part 383 Commercial Driver's License

The license history of 20 CDL drivers currently employed by Ride the Ducks was checked. Checks were conducted through
CDLIS. All drivers were properly licensed with at least a Class C CDL and Passenger endorsement for the vehicles being
operated.

Part 387 Financial Responsibility

The Form E on file at the commission shows Ride the Ducks has public liability limits of $5,000,000 and its vehicles are
insured effective April 15, 2016, by National Continental Insurance Company under Policy CPW55289616.

Ride the Ducks provided a copy of a Certificate of Liability Insurance which shows primary liability limits of $5,000,000. Ride
the Ducks' insurance agent is Kim Bell. The telephone number is (417) 841-3210. Staff contacted Ms. Bell and requested a
loss run report. The loss run report shows no recordable accidents from July 12, 2016 through January 18, 2017.

No other recordable accidents were discovered.

Part 390 General

Ride the Ducks was involved in one recordable accident since December 15, 2015. The accident took place on March 31,
2016, in Duck 7. One of the vehicles involved in the accident was towed and no one received a citation. Ride the Ducks has
an accident register on file showing the accident.

Ride the Ducks' MCS-150 was updated on July 12, 2016. Vehicle Miles Travelled (VMT) was 163,365 in 2015.
Ride the Ducks vehicles are properly marked in accordance with CFR 390.21.

Part 391 Qualification of Drivers

Ride the Ducks currently employs 24 CDL drivers and used 37 CDL drivers since December 15, 2015. A sample size of five
driver qualification (DQ) files were checked. Sarah Chido, Jeremy Temple, Ryan Hawkins, Scott Somerville and Randal
Nelson were reviewed.

All driver files were in compliance.

Each of the five drivers checked had a current medical certificate on file. Ride the Ducks noted the medical certificates
were issued by members of the National Registry of Certified Medical Examiners by printing out the National Registry
Website and noting the printout.

In accordance with FMCSA Memorandum MC-ECS-2012-004 two driver's medical certificates were required to be verified.
Both medical certificates were confirmed valid and it was verified the doctors are listed on the national registry.

Name: Curt Nakon
Date of Birth: May 7, 1960
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RIDE THE DUCKS OF SEATTLE Review Date:
U.S. DOT #: 1905507 State #: ES-146 02/27/2017

Part C

License Number: NAKONC*407KG

ME's License/Certificate Number: MD 60064778

Date of Issuance of the MEC: March 21, 2016

National Registry Identification Number: 4093671940
Phone Number: (425) 486-9131

Date and Time Contacted: January 25, 2017@ 1:56PM
Results MEC Check: Confirmed

Name: Ryan Hawkins

Date of Birth: February 18, 1979

License Number: HAWKIRW211CQ

ME's License/Certificate Number: 10004996

Date of Issuance of the MEC: July 1, 2016

National Registry Identification Number: 5482162385
Phone Number: (206) 784-0737

Date and Time Contacted: January 25, 2017@ 2:08 PM
Results MEC Check: Confirmed

Part 392 Driving of CMV's and Authority

Ride the Ducks is an intrastate carrier and required to submit an annual report each year and pay regulatory fees. Ride the
Ducks submitted its annual report and paid its regulatory fees for 2016 on April 26, 2016. Ride the Ducks is not required to
pay UCR fees.

Part 395 Hours of Service

Since December 15, 2015, Ride the Ducks has employed 37 CDL drivers. Ride the Ducks currently employs 24 drivers.
Seven drivers' hours of service records were checked for a period of 30 days within the past six months. A total of 210
Records of Duty Status (RODS) were checked. The records of drivers Randy Graham, Scott Somerville, Curt Nakon, Ryan
Hawkins, Randal Nelson, Sarah Chido and Jeremy Temple were reviewed. Ride the Ducks operates under the exemption
found in CFR Part 395.1 (e) (100 air-mile radius) which allows motor carriers to use timecards in place of logbooks. The
exemption states the driver of a passenger-carrying commercial motor vehicle must have at least eight hours off duty
between each 12 hours on duty, the driver must be released from work within 12 consecutive hours, the driver cannot drive
more than 10 hours following eight consecutive hours off duty, and the driver must operate within a 100 air-mile radius of
the normal work reporting location. The motor carrier is required to retain the records for six months. The records must
include the time the driver starts for duty each day, the total hours the driver is on duty each day, the time the driver is
released from duty each day, and the total time for the preceding seven days for drivers used for the first time or
intermittently. Ride the Ducks operates every day of the week and is not permitted to allow a driver to be on duty 70 hours
in any period of eight consecutive days.

A 30 day period in August 2016 was reviewed. RODS were checked by comparing payroll, timecards, logbooks,
timesheets, fuel receipts, and a tours worked spreadsheet. Mr. Johnson created and maintains an extensive spreadsheet
where he both records and schedules driver hours. Copies of the week to date information are shared with additional Ride
the Duck staff, including Joe Hatten, and drivers are required to prove their awareness of week to date hours before Mr.
Hatten allows them to depart for the days run. Ride the Ducks utilizes a punch clock to record weekly hours as well as a
computer program called “Keep Truckin” which creates log pages for drivers on days they exceed twelve hours.

No false records were discovered. No 10, 15, or 70 hour violations were discovered. Logs were created when drivers
exceeded the limitations of the Short Haul provision as required. None of the drivers sampled had an Out-of-Service
violation listed on the carrier profile since December 15, 2015.

Part 393 & 396 Maintenance and Inspection

Maintenance on Ride the Duck vehicles is performed at Ride the Ducks' PPOB. Ride the Ducks started using a specialized
program in 2011 for its maintenance needs. The program has built in reminder capabilities, parts inventory tracking, and
CDL or medical certificate renewal reminders. In general Ride the Ducks begins with the manufacture recommendation for
maintenance of its vehicles. The program can be adjusted to increase the frequency of a specific maintenance item. The
program alerts maintenance staff at requested time or mileage intervals. The program monitors parts based on miles,
hours, and days. Each morning maintenance staff checks the program and a list of reminders shows which specific
vehicles are due for service, what parts are low or missing, and which vehicle is due for a 90 day inspection. According to
maintenance staff Ride the Ducks performs a 240 hour inspection of its vehicles every 90 days. Mechanics conduct a
pre-trip inspection the night before a vehicle is operated. If for some reason a vehicle is placed out of service an email is
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RIDE THE DUCKS OF SEATTLE Review Date:
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Part C

distributed to all of the parties involved in safety, including dispatch. Ride the Ducks uses a whiteboard to show the status o
each vehicle. A tire company comes in once a month to check the PSI of the Ride the Ducks vehicles. Maintenance is
responsible for monitoring tire tread and notifies the lead mechanic if tread is getting low.

Ride the Ducks staff is aware of and actively monitoring the status of the recall related to the front axle of the stretch ducks.
A new monitoring procedure regarding the work detailed in service bulletins has been implemented for each Duck. A
separate binder for each vehicle has been created so that service bulletin related work can be tracked and monitored.

Present during the time of this review was a third party consultant, invited by Ride the Ducks, to evaluate the maintenance
program. Jeffery W. Abendshien is the Vice President of Recreational Engineering from Las Vegas, NV. He has extensive
mechanical experience with Duck fleets throughout the United States. Mr. Hatten explained to me that Ride the Ducks has
instituted a new procedure for all of their front axles where each potential new axle was first run through a “nondestructive
test” (NDT) procedure where minute cracks can be observed. Mr. Hatten stated that the tolerance for cracks in axles for
Ride the Ducks is above that of the general automotive industry. Mr. Abendshien is a NDT Level lll and is very familiar with
this procedure. Mr. Abendshien stated he was having a “difficult time” finding any violations regarding the Ride the Ducks
maintenance program.

The maintenance files of Duck 10, 12, 14, 16, and 18 were selected for review. Each of the maintenance files had a current
annual inspection as follows:

Duck 10 -Annual inspection December 7, 2016.

Duck 12 -Annual inspection December 10, 2016.

Duck 14 -Annual inspection December 17, 2016.

Duck 16 -Annual inspection December 15, 2016.

Duck 18 - Annual inspection September 29, 2016.

Inspector qualifications as required by CFR Part 396.19(a) (1) and brake inspector qualifications as required by CFR Part
396.25(d) are present as required.

Bus pushout windows, emergency doors, and emergency door marking lights are required to be checked at least every 90
days. Ride the Ducks uses a "Duck Emergency Exit Inspection” worksheet. The Daily Vehicle Inspection Report (DVIR)
shows that drivers and mechanics check the," . . . condition of entryway door(s)" and” ... verify side curtain operation and
release handles ... " each time the vehicle is operated. The vehicles do not have "push-out" windows.

A total of 150 DVIRs from Duck 10, 12, 14, 16, and 18 were reviewed (30 each). The reviewed DVIRs were within 90 days
from the start of the review. A Ride the Ducks mechanic completes a pre-trip inspection of the vehicle the night before it is
operated. The mechanic initials and signs the pre-trip column. The driver comes on duty in the morning and performs
another pre-trip inspection prior to operating the vehicle. The driver also initials and signs the pre-trip column of the DVIR.
The driver reviews the DVIR from the prior day and signs the current DVIR verifying that any defects noted on the previous
day were repaired or need not be repaired for safe operation of the vehicle. At the completion of the day's tours the driver
performs a post-trip inspection. The driver initials and signs the post-trip column of the DVIR. The driver records any
defects in a box at the bottom of the DVIR. A mechanic reviews the DVIR that night and make any necessary repairs.
Repairs are recorded in a box on the right side of the DVIR. If parts are needed for the repair the mechanic will generate a
work order using the specialized program referenced earlier in this report. If a vehicle is found to have an out of service
defect the vehicle is "red-tagged." All of the DVIRs that had a defect noted were certified as repaired or not needed for safe
operation of the vehicle. The next driver signed the DVIR to verify repairs were completed or not needed. Work orders were
reviewed to ensure that repairs were made. No violations were discovered.

Five level seven vehicle inspections were completed. Duck 7, 9, 10, 11, and 12 were inspected and passed inspection. All
five vehicles inspected had proof of a periodic inspection.

CLOSING INTERVIEW
The closing was performed on February 27, 2017 via telephone. From the commission Francine Gagne was present. From
Ride the Ducks Ryan Johnson was present. This investigation is an unrated review.

DOCUMENTS GIVEN TO THE CARRIER
A copy of the investigation was provided to Ride the Ducks.

FOLLOW-ON ACTION:
No new violations of the laws or regulations outlined in Docket TE-151906 Order 08 were identified. A follow-up compliance
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Part C

review will be scheduled in February 2018. Order 06 requires commission staff to conduct another compliance review again

after two years from the date of the Order.
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